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Reich, Steven

From: Reich, Steven
Sent: Monday, September 30, 2013 3:19 PM
To: 'Rodney G. Snow'
Subject: RE: computers

Rod, we see these as potentially serious issues.  If you believe they are not, don’t wait too long to explain to us why. 
 
From: Rodney G. Snow [mailto:RGS@ClydeSnow.com]  
Sent: Sunday, September 29, 2013 3:49 PM 
To: Reich, Steven 
Subject: RE: computers 
 
Steve, will get to this when I get  back next week.  I think that both a personal and an office computer were impacted. I 
do not know how significant it was—at the moment.  It  has been several months since I dealt with this issue.    My 
understanding is that  it happened as a routine practice and long before anyone had thought about the DOJ or other 
investigations.  Recovery from one of the computers was significant, as I recall.  The other computer had crashed and 
recovery from that computer was unsuccessful.  This may need to wait for John to get back and I need to get that date 
but I think he is gone all next week and maybe part of the following.  We will work with you on this matter, as should 
have been  obvious to you.  Thank you.   
 
From: Reich, Steven [mailto:sreich@akingump.com]  
Sent: Sunday, September 29, 2013 8:51 AM 
To: Rodney G. Snow 
Subject:  
 
 

Rod: 
 
When we met recently in your office I believe you indicated that there was a significant loss of data from the Attorney 
General's personal computer(s) that might impact a production of documents by him and that you previously had made 
unsuccessful efforts to recover data from the affected computer(s).  Could you please provide the following information 
as promptly as possible: 
 

1. Which computer(s) are affected by the data loss? 
2. What is the scope of the data loss? 
3. When did your client first become aware of the data loss and under what circumstances? 
4. What efforts have been made to recover missing data, by whom and when?  
5. What is your best understanding of the circumstances, timing and cause of the data loss? 
6. Are you or your client still in possession of the affected computer(s)?  

 
In addition, we would appreciate it if you or your client refrained from making additional efforts to recover the data 
without first consulting with us.  And, of course, we expect that all computers, PDAs, Tablets and other communications 
devices will be preserved.   
Many thanks, Steve. 
 
Steven F. Reich  
AKIN GUMP STRAUSS HAUER & FELD  L L P   
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One Bryant Park | New York, NY 10036-6745 | USA | Direct: +1 212.872.1012 | Internal: 31012  
Fax: +1 212.872.1002 | sreich@akingump.com | akingump.com  

  

_______________________________________________  
IRS Circular 230 Notice Requirement: This communication is not given in the form of a covered 
opinion, within the meaning of Circular 230 issued by the United States Secretary of the Treasury. 
Thus, we are required to inform you that you cannot rely upon any tax advice contained in this 
communication for the purpose of avoiding United States federal tax penalties. In addition, any tax 
advice contained in this communication may not be used to promote, market or recommend a 
transaction to another party.  
 
The information contained in this e-mail message is intended only for the personal and confidential 
use of the recipient(s) named above. If you have received this communication in error, please 
notify us immediately by e-mail, and delete the original message.  
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Reich, Steven

From: Rodney G. Snow <RGS@ClydeSnow.com>
Sent: Friday, October 04, 2013 12:55 PM
To: Reich, Steven
Cc: Neil A. Kaplan
Subject: RE: computers

Steven, I am now back and juggling too many balls.  I have no doubt you would like this to be a serious issue.  My 
judgment when I reviewed this matter many months ago was that it was not a serious matter.  Are you suggesting that 
you never delete e-mails—that your firm preserves all e-mails and does not have a policy of regularly  deleting many e-
mails?   I see what John was doing  as being consistent with that type of policy.      John is still out of the City.  We need 
to talk about a production time line, as you suggested.  Thank you.   
 
From: Reich, Steven [mailto:sreich@akingump.com]  
Sent: Monday, September 30, 2013 1:19 PM 
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
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Special Investigative Committee of the House of Representatives 
Re: John Swallow 

Privilege Log 

Email with counsel concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; Rodney John Swallow; 
Snow; 

Email with counsel concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; Rodney John Swallow; 

Snow; 
Email with counsel concerning legal strategy Email John Swallow; Rodney Snow; 

Email with counsel concerning legal strategy Email John Swallow; Jason Powers; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Steve Grand; Paul Murphy; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Paul Murphy; Rodney Jason Powers; 

Snow; John Swallow; Carl 

Forti; Steve Grand; 

Jonathan Wilcox; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email John Swallow; Jason Rodney Snow; 

Powers; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Rodney Snow; Paul Murphy; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Rodney Snow; Steve Grand; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Paul Murphy; Carl Forti; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Rodney Snow; Steve Grand; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Carl Forti; Paul Murphy; Rodney Snow; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Jason Powers; John Swallow; 
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Special Investigative Committee of the House of Representatives 
Re: John Swallow 

Privilege Log 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Rodney Snow; Paul Murphy; John Swallow; Jason 

Powers; Jonathan 

Wilcox; Carl Forti; Steve 

Grand; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Paul Murphy; Rodney Jason Powers; 
Snow; John Swallow; Carl 

Forti; Steve Grand; 

Jonathan Wilcox; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Rodney Snow; Steve Grand; John Swallow; Jason 

Powers; Jonathan 

Wilcox; Carl Forti; Paul 

Murphy; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Paul Murphy; Carl Forti; Rodney Snow; John 

Swallow; Jason Powers; 

Jonathan Wilcox; Steve 

Grand; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Carl Forti; Paul Murphy; Rodney Snow; John Swallow; Jason 

Powers; Jonathan 

Wilcox; Steve Grand; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Rodney Snow; Steve Grand; Carl Forti; Paul Murphy; 

John Swallow; Jason 

Powers; Jonathan 

Wilcox; 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Steve Grand; Paul Murphy; Rodney Snow; Carl Forti; 

John Swallow; Jason 

Powers; Jonathan 

Wilcox; 

Email with counsel concerning legal strategy Email John Swallow; Rodney Snow; 

Email with counsel concerning legal strategy Email Rodney Snow; John Swallow; 

Email with counsel concerning legal strategy Email John Swallow; Rodney Snow; 

Email concerning legal responses to press Email Jason Powers; John Paul Murphy; Steve Grand; 

questions Swallow; 

Email concerning legal responses to press Email Paul Murphy; Steve Grand; Jason Powers; John 

questions Swallow; 

Email concerning legal responses to press Email Steve Grand; Paul Murphy; Jason Powers; John 

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

Email concerning legal response to article Email Jason Powers; Paul Murphy; Rodney Snow; John 

Swallow; Steve Grand; 

Carl Forti; 
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Special Investigative Committee of the House of Representatives 
Re: John Swallow 

Privilege Log 

Email concerning legal response to article Email Jason Powers; Paul Murphy; 

Email draft concerning legal response to article Email Paul Murphy; John Swallow; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Carl Forti; Paul Murphy; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Paul Murphy; Rodney Snow; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Steve Grand; Paul Murphy; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Steve Grand; Paul Murphy; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Paul Murphy; Carl Forti; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Steve Grand; Paul Murphy; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Carl Forti; Jason Powers; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; Carl Forti; Jonathan Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jonathan Wilcox; Paul Murphy; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; Carl Forti; 
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Special Investigative Committee of the House of Representatives 
Re: John Swallow 

Privilege Log 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Paul Murphy; Rodney Snow; Steve Grand; Carl Forti; 

Jason Powers; John 

Swallow; Jonathan 

Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Paul Murphy; Steve Grand; Carl Forti; Jason Powers; 

John Swallow; Rodney 
Snow; Jonathan Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Paul Murphy; Steve Grand; Carl Forti; Jason Powers; 
John Swallow; Rodney 

Snow; Jonathan Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Rodney Snow; Carl Forti; Paul Murphy; Steve 

Grand; Jason Powers; 

John Swallow; Jonathan 
Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Steve Grand; Paul Murphy; Carl Forti; Jason Powers; 
John Swallow; Rodney 

Snow; Jonathan Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email John Swallow; Paul Murphy; Jonathan Wilcox; Jason 
Powers; Carl Forti; Steve 

Grand; Rodney Snow; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; Rodney Snow; Paul Murphy; Steve 

Grand; Carl Forti; John 
Swallow; Jonathan 

Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Rodney Snow; Paul Murphy; Jason Powers; Steve 
Grand; Carl Forti; John 

Swallow; Jonathan 
Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email John Swallow; Rodney Snow; Jonathan Wilcox; Jason 
Powers; Carl Forti; Steve 
Grand; Paul Murphy; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Rodney Snow; Jason Powers; Jonathan Wilcox; John 
Swallow; Carl Forti; Steve 

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

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; Paul Murphy; Jonathan Wilcox; Rodney 

Snow; John Swallow; Carl 
Forti; Steve Grand; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email John Swallow; Paul Murphy; Jonathan Wilcox; Jason 

Powers; Carl Forti; 

Rodney Snow; Steve 
Grand; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email John Swallow; Rodney Snow; Paul Murphy; Carl Forti; 

Steve Grand; 
j@CiydeSnow.com 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Rodney Snow; Jason Powers; Paul Murphy; Steve 

Grand; Carl Forti; John 

Swallow; Jonathan 
Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; Paul Murphy; John Swallow; Carl Forti; 

Rodney Snow; Steve 
Grand; Jonathan Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Steve Grand; Paul Jonathan Wilcox; Carl Forti; Jason Powers; 
Murphy; John Swallow; Rodney 

Snow; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Rodney Snow; Paul Murphy; Jason Powers; Steve 

Grand; Carl Forti; John 

Swallow; Jonathan 
Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; Steve Grand; John Swallow; Carl Forti; 

Rodney Snow; Jonathan 
Wilcox; Paul Murphy; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Steve Grand; Paul Murphy; Jason Powers; John 

Swallow; Carl Forti; 
Rodney Snow; Jonathan 
Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Steve Grand; Jason Powers; John Swallow; Carl Forti; 
Rodney Snow; Jonathan 

Wilcox; Paul Murphy; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; Rodney Snow; Steve Grand; John 
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Special Investigative Committee of the House of Representatives 
Re: John Swallow 

Privilege Log 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Carl Forti; Jason Powers; Jonathan Wilcox; 

John Swallow; Rodney 

Snow; Steve Grand; Paul 

Murphy; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Carl Forti; Steve Grand; Jason Powers; John 

Swallow; Rodney Snow; 

Jonathan Wilcox; Paul 

Murphy; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Steve Grand; Carl Forti; Jason Powers; John 

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

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email John Swallow; Rodney Snow; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Paul Murphy; Rodney Snow; Jason Powers; Steve 

Grand; Carl Forti; John 

Swallow; Jonathan 

Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Paul Murphy; Steve Grand; Rodney Snow; Jason 

Powers; Carl Forti; John 

Swallow; Jonathan 

Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Steve Grand; Jason Powers; Paul Murphy; Rodney 

Snow; Carl Forti; John 

Swallow; Jonathan 

Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Paul Murphy; John Swallow; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Rodney Snow; John Swallow; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Paul Murphy; John Swallow; Jonathan Wilcox; Jason 

Powers; Carl Forti; 

Rodney Snow; Steve 

Grand; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jonathan Wilcox; John Swallow; Jason Powers; Carl Forti; 

Steve Grand; Rodney 

Snow; Paul Murphy; 

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

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Rodney Snow; Jason Powers; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Rodney Snow; Carl Forti; 

Paul Murphy; Steve 

Grand; Carl Forti; John 

Swallow; Jonathan 

Wilcox; 

Paul Murphy; Steve 

Grand; Jason Powers; 

John Swallow; Jonathan 

Wilcox; 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Carl Forti; Paul Murphy; Rodney Snow; Steve 

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

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; Carl Forti; Paul Murphy; Steve 

Grand; John Swallow; 

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

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Steve Grand; Paul Murphy; Jason Powers;Jennifer 

West; Carl Forti; Rodney 
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
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Special Investigative Committee of .the House of Representatives 
Re: John Swallow 

Privilege Log 

Email with legal team concerning legal strategy Email Jason Powers; John Carl Forti; 

Swallow; Rodney Snow; 

Steve Grand; Jonathan 

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

From: Jennifer A. James <JAJ@ClydeSnow.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 07, 2013 4:36 PM
To: Reich, Steven; Egleson, Christopher; 'mgreer@akingump.com'
Cc: Rodney G. Snow; Walter A. Romney, Jr.
Subject: John Swallow Investigation

Dear Steve, Chris and Megan: 
 

Megan called me to inquire if Attorney General Swallow obtained  a new personal  cell phone in the 
latter part of 2012.  I confirmed with the Attorney General that he has used his current personal cell phone since 
approximately November 2011, and has not obtained a new personal cell phone since that time.  He did receive 
a new state i Phone in approximately November 2012. The screen on that I Phone broke when it was dropped a 
few weeks ago, and the Attorney General was given a new state i Phone.  He understands that the state has 
possession of both the i Phone replaced in November 2012 and  the i Phone recently dropped.  

 
Steve emailed me last Saturday with a question about the circled numbers on the Attorney General’s 

Franklin Covey planner.  The circled numbers are the Attorney General’s summary of estimated time spent 
on  the Chaparral project during certain time periods. 
 
Regards, 
 
Jennifer 
  
Jennifer A. James 
ClydeSnow 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 
201 South Main Street, Suite 1300 
Salt Lake City, UT 84111 
P: 801.322.2516 
F: 801.521.6280 
www.clydesnow.com 
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Trent Nelson | Tribune file photo Utah Attorney General
Mark Shurtleff, left, and Republican attorney general
nominee John Swallow share a laugh at a campaign
event.

Entrepreneur, accused of swindling millions from investors, has receipts for meals and massages Shurtleff and Swallow charged to him.

BY ROBERT GEHRKE

THE SALT LAKE TRIBUNE

PUBLISHED: MAY 9, 2013 01:12PM

UPDATED: DECEMBER 7, 2013 11:31PM

Draper • Receipts show then-Utah Attorney General Mark Shurtleff and his successor, John
Swallow, got free meals, massages, golf outings and supplies at a gated Newport Beach villa,
charging thousands of dollars of expenses to a man the Attorney General’s Office had
months earlier charged with six felonies and has put behind bars.

Shurtleff’s and Swallow’s curious and complicated relationship with businessman Marc
Sessions Jenson, accused of swindling millions from investors, is part of an ongoing federal
probe into Swallow’s conduct that appears to now include Shurtleff as well.

“I’m telling you right now: They were extorting me, and they were from the very
beginning,” Jenson said in an interview Wednesday at the Utah State Prison in Draper.

Jenson, locked up after failing to pay $4 million in restitution and facing a new set of fraud
charges, has met twice with the FBI and provided them with the same receipts and
documents his attorneys gave to The Salt Lake Tribune.

The Southern California vacations were just part of what Jenson says Shurtleff and Swallow pressed him to provide. In addition,
Jenson says, Shurtleff directed him to make consulting payments to a close friend of the attorney general and asked him to spend
$250,000 on a phantom book deal.

Jenson says that Swallow, who boasted in 2009 that he would be joining the Attorney General’s Office as Shurtleff’s handpicked
successor, suggested he could help the businessman navigate his legal troubles from inside the office and ensure that Jenson’s
plans for a luxurious $3.5 billion Mount Holly resort, with private ski slopes and a Jack Nicklaus-designed golf course, became a
reality.

In exchange, Jenson alleges, Swallow wanted a share in the posh Beaver County resort. The shares started at $1.5 million.

“I was stunned. I was shocked. I was also scared to death,” Jenson said. “I had no idea what they would do next.”

Swallow’s spokesman, Paul Murphy, issued a statement late Wednesday. Murphy says Swallow met Jenson when coaching Jenson’s
nephew in little league baseball, and all of Swallow’s interaction with Jenson occurred when he was an attorney in private practice,
before joining the Attorney General’s Office.

“He never promised to help Mr. Jenson if he breached his plea arrangement,” the statement said.

Swallow has walled himself off from any involvement in Jenson’s case since June 2011 and the office has aggressively prosecuted
Jenson, the statement said.

Shurtleff flatly denies Jenson’s allegations, alleging the convict is retaliating against the man who put him in prison.

“I was responsible for the investigation, conviction and sentencing of Jenson,” Shurtleff said. “ … He has sworn revenge. I suggest
you consider carefully whether to believe a desperate, convicted fraudster.”

Jenson’s story goes back more than a decade and is marked by several multimillion-dollar ventures that fizzled.

A California native who grew up in Holladay, Jenson amassed considerable wealth making short-term, high-interest “bridge loans”
to business ventures while they were trying to get long-term financing.

He had experienced legal tussles before, including two bankruptcies and a previous prison stint on a tax conviction.

In 2005, the risky business deals caught up with him. A bid to buy the Mongoose bike company fell through and angry investors —
whom Jenson insists he repaid in full — accused Jenson of deceiving them about the deal and his past, prompting the Utah
Attorney General’s Office to charge Jenson with five counts of securities fraud and a count of racketeering.
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Jenson says he was at a Jazz game in 2008, when he was approached by Rob Stahura, a longtime friend. Stahura ran Mentoring of
America, which itself came into the cross hairs of state regulators and ultimately was sued by the Federal Trade Commission.

Stahura had raised tens of thousands of dollars for Shurtleff and, Jenson says, offered to contact the attorney general on Jenson’s
behalf. Stahura arranged a meeting with Shurtleff and also introduced Jenson to Tim Lawson, a Shurtleff friend and a
self-described “fixer.”

Jenson says Lawson became his conduit to Shurtleff and that he paid Lawson significant sums, starting with a down payment on a
piano, then $10,000 in cash followed by periodic payments during the next 18 months.

Jenson says Shurtleff told him to make the payments and “personally told me, ‘Tim’s my guy.’ ” Jenson believes some of the money
went to Shurtleff.

Lawson says Jenson’s claims are absurd. He says Jenson hired him to keep investors at bay while he scraped together money to
repay them, but maintains Lawson never provided Jenson access to Shurtleff.

“Jenson is in prison because he is a pathological liar,” Lawson said, “because he lied to the people he stole money from.”

Later, Jenson says, Stahura also brought in Swallow — then Shurtleff’s lead fundraiser and still more than a year from becoming
No. 2 at the Attorney General’s Office — to be another line to Shurtleff.

In May 2008, Jenson’s attorneys hammered out a plea in abeyance with prosecutors from the Attorney General’s Office in which
Jenson would pay no restitution and serve no time — as long as he stayed out of trouble. But 3rd District Judge Robin Reese
rejected the deal as too lenient.

Later that month, the parties were back in front of Reese, who approved a plea in abeyance that would lead to Jenson’s release, but
require him to pay $4.1 million in restitution over three years.

Soon after the plea, Jenson says,Lawson and Shurtleff began pressing him to help Shurtleff make campaign-fundraising
connections.

In 2009, Shurtleff and Swallow made their first trips to the tony Newport Beach community of Pelican Hill.

Jenson says Shurtleff went twice in 2009, once for a weekend, the next time for several days longer. Swallow made three visits.

Receipts show they played rounds of golf.

Swallow and his wife received $228 stone massages. Swallow picked up golf balls, gloves, a golf hat and an argyle sweater totaling
more than $400. And the guests ordered meals worth hundreds of dollars — all of it on Jenson’s dime.

Jenson says he had little choice.

“Can you imagine how I actually felt about these people after all I’d been through?” Jenson asked. “Yes, I was cordial, but I thought
this was just crazy.”

Lawson and his family were also frequent guests. Lawson says he visited Pelican Hill twice a month over several months. He says
Shurtleff and Swallow were his guests at the resort and that their expenses were part of his compensation.

“Part of the perks of me working for Jenson meant I got access to the facilities and meals and that stuff paid for,” Lawson said.
“That had nothing to do with Shurtleff. That just happened to be one of my perks.”

Jenson says Shurtleff told him repeatedly that if the businessman had given to his campaign, he could have avoided all of his
troubles.

“Mark Shurtleff told me at least 50 times, ‘If you’d just donated to my campaign, if I’d known who you were, this never would have
happened,” Jenson said.

Shurtleff says no such conversations happened.

“That’s laughable. Categorically false,” he said. “Not even a hint or a suggestion. There are scores of people who will tell you Marc
Jenson is a pathological liar.”

Jenson also claims that Shurtleff approached him with another deal he rejected.

He says after Shurtleff’s book, Am I Not A Man?, a historical narrative of the 19th-century slave Dred Scott — which Shurtleff wrote
chunks of during his time at Pelican Hill — was published, Shurtleff suggested that Jenson buy $250,000 worth of books.

Jenson says Shurtleff would get $50,000 to $60,000 of that money and that Jenson would never have to actually receive the books.

Again, Shurtleff denies it happened.

“Everything he told you are lies,” Shurtleff said in an email.

Jenson made his allegations wearing a white prison jumpsuit, sopping up a lunch of sloppy Joe-like stew with white bread. He said
he could trade his cookies for a stamped envelope to send a letter home.

3678



After Jenson failed to pay any of his restitution — despite, prosecutors say, burning through more than $9 million while living his
lavish lifestyle — Reese sent him back to prison in 2011 for up to 10 years.

The Attorney General’s Office also hit Jenson and his brother, Stephen Jenson, in August 2011 with another set of eight second-
degree felony charges for allegedly defrauding investors out of millions in the Mount Holly project. That case is still pending.

Jenson says he has met twice with FBI agents for about seven hours and believes the investigation is broader than people realize.

“It is my firm knowledge,” he said, “that these two [Shurtleff and Swallow] are the tip of the iceberg that [the feds] are interested
in.”

Who else are they after? He wouldn’t say.

gehrke@sltrib.com

Twitter: @RobertGehrke

—

The Swallow probe

Indicted St. George businessman Jeremy Johnson, who faces 86 criminal counts, has alleged that Utah Attorney General John
Swallow helped broker payoffs to enlist the aid of Senate Majority Leader Harry Reid in derailing a Federal Trade Commission
investigation of Johnson’s I Works business.

Swallow and Reid have denied the allegations. The Justice Department is investigating.

© Copyright 2014 The Salt Lake Tribune. All rights reserved. This material may not be published, broadcast, rewritten or redistributed.
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Mailer alleges Utah AG candidate was investigated by 

feds 

“This flier is so outrageous. It’s an absolute lie,” Utah attorney general’s office says of claims. 

BY ROBERT GEHRKE

THE SALT LAKE TRIBUNE

PUBLISHED: JUNE 13, 2012 10:01PM

UPDATED: JUNE 14, 2012 10:40AM 

A political ad that will hit Republican voters’ mailboxes this week makes a dramatic 
allegation — that GOP attorney general candidate John Swallow was the target of a federal 
investigation for intervening in a Salt Lake County bid process.

But the Utah attorney general’s office says that accusation is wrong, calling the flier a 
malicious hit piece and a potential violation of state law.

The Swallow camp also is firing back. “He [Swallow] talked to the FBI,” said Jason Powers, a 
consultant for the candidate’s campaign. “He wasn’t the target of an investigation. He was 
supporting an investigation.”

The mailer says Swallow, as chief deputy attorney general, intervened in a contract on behalf 
of a company in which he held a personal financial stake — a charge Powers also denies —
was investigated by the feds last year and “could potentially be indicted at any time.”

No source is cited for the allegation, but Dimitri Moumoulidis, a Democrat in charge of Ute 
PAC, which sent the mailer to 30,000 likely Republican voters Wednesday, said he has been 
told the information by reliable sources.

“John Swallow is a bad fit for this state,” said Moumoulidis, “and I think there are things we 
haven’t been discussing about John Swallow that probably need to be discussed before he’s 
anointed as the Republican Party nominee.”

The flier, coming two weeks before Swallow’s June 26 GOP primary against attorney Sean Reyes, raises the issue of a contract dispute 
involving Salt Lake County and California-based Worldwide Environmental Products, which sought to provide emissions-testing 
equipment to garages in the county.

Awarding the three-year, $12 million contract turned into a bitter fight. Worldwide alleged the bid was rigged, and the attorney 
general’s office and, eventually, the FBI and U.S. attorney’s office became involved, according to interviews and records obtained by 
The Salt Lake Tribune.

A grand jury was convened to hear testimony relating to the contract. Swallow, Assistant Attorney General Alan Bachman and 
Bachman’s paralegal were subpoenaed to testify. But the case was apparently scrapped at the last minute; the grand jury did not 
convene.

The target of the investigation is unclear. The FBI and U.S. attorney’s office would not comment. 

Paul Murphy, spokesman for the Utah attorney general’s office, said the federal authorities were investigating the contracting 
process.

“[Swallow and Bachman] were told they were not a subject, that they were looking at [the contract dispute], and they were being 
asked to testify on behalf of the FBI on what their interactions were with Worldwide,” Murphy said Wednesday. “Swallow did not 
receive a target letter. He has a peripheral role on this, so this flier is so outrageous. It’s an absolute lie.”

Murphy also said Swallow has no stake in Worldwide.

Nate Sechrest, an attorney who represented Worldwide in the contract dispute, said he never understood what the FBI was 
investigating.

“I just have no idea,” said Sechrest, who was also subpoenaed to testify. “ ... I don’t know that we’ll ever actually know what 
happened.”

In 2010, Worldwide, based in Brea, Calif., lost a bid to provide emissions equipment to garages in Salt Lake County. The company 
protested, arguing it was the only bidder whose equipment met state standards and alleged that two county councilmen — Randy 

Utah Attorney General-elect John Swallow. (Tribune file 
photo) 

Page 1 of 2Mailer alleges Utah AG candidate was investigated by feds | The Salt Lake Tribune

3/5/2014http://www.sltrib.com/csp/cms/sites/sltrib/pages/printerfriendly.csp?id=54301020
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Horiuchi and Joe Hatch, who was on the bid-review team — conspired to steer the contract to another company.

Horiuchi and Hatch say that allegation is absurd and that they never even discussed the contract. They never met with the FBI and 
were not subpoenaed.

Worldwide’s protest was rejected. The company, through lobbyist Nancy Sechrest, Nate Sechrest’s mother, repeatedly pushed for an 
inquiry, according to emails from Nancy Sechrest to Swallow.

Bachman, who specializes in contracting, contacted the county’s attorneys, T.J. Tsakalos and Craig Anderson. Both said Bachman 
threatened the county with a criminal probe if Worldwide didn’t get another hearing on its protest.

Bachman told The Tribune that there was a misunderstanding and that he made no such threat, pointing to an email after his call in 
which he stressed that the state may investigate, not that it would.

Salt Lake County District Attorney Sim Gill said it was “bad pool” for the attorney general’s office to insert itself into a county bid. 
And, if there was proof of a crime, it needed to be investigated, instead of just demanding another hearing for Worldwide, said Gill, so 
he called the FBI.

“If there’s corruption, we want to find it. We want an objective, transparent look at this,” Gill said. “If you call here and make such 
accusations, then you know what? Be prepared. We’ll pick up the phone [to the FBI] and say, ‘Investigate us, investigate them, 
investigate everyone else, whoever is involved in this process.’ ”

The FBI investigated and, in April 2011, issued a series of subpoenas, ordering several individuals involved to appear before a grand 
jury. But the grand jury was called off for reasons that are unclear. Carlie Christensen, who was the acting U.S. attorney at the time, 
would not discuss the case. An FBI spokeswoman said agency policy prohibits confirming or denying the existence of any 
investigation.

gehrke@sltrib.com

—

Excerpt from the flier:

“It has come to our attention that John Swallow was the subject of an FBI and grand jury investigation recently. It involved an 
incident in which John Swallow was using government resources to try and force a $4 million contract with Salt Lake County and a 
company named Worldwide Environmental Products. The investigation found that John had a financial stake in this company and 
was having the county threatened with lawsuits so he could profit from it. John Swallow could potentially be indicted at any time.”

© Copyright 2014 The Salt Lake Tribune. All rights reserved. This material may not be published, broadcast, rewritten or redistributed.

Page 2 of 2Mailer alleges Utah AG candidate was investigated by feds | The Salt Lake Tribune

3/5/2014http://www.sltrib.com/csp/cms/sites/sltrib/pages/printerfriendly.csp?id=54301020

3732



 

EXHIBIT 186 

  

3733



From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

Shelley Exeter 
Sechrest, Nancy 
1/10/2011 12:07 PM 
RE: investigation 

I will check with John and let you know. 

>» Nancy Sechrest <nsechrest@msn.com> 1/10/2011 12:05 PM >» 

Thanks Shelley. Any chance he has given the request to John Swallow to follow through? - Nancy 

> Date: Mon, 10 Jan 2011 11 :32:42 -0700 
> From: saexeter@utah.gov 
>To: nsechrest@msn.com 
> Subject: Re: investigation 
> 
> I asked him about this last Thursday when he dropped in for a few minutes. He admitted that he had 
not yet assigned this out, but assured me that he would get on it. 
> 
> I will keep reminding him that he needs to get this done, but please feel free to send me emails 
regarding the status -- it is always more powerful when the reminders come from you. 
> 
>Shelley 
> 
> 
> 
>»>Nancy Sechrest <nsechrest@msn.com> 1/10/2011 11 :09 AM »> 
> 
> Hi Shelley - I know Mark starts his chemo this morning and won't be feeling well for most of the week. 
Any updates on the investigation into the Salt Lake County emissions program bidding process? - Nancy 

> 

AGGR000517 
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From: 
To: 
Date: 
Subject: 

John Swallow<jswallow@utah.gov> 
nsechrest@msn .com 
1/21/2011 11 :24 AM 
Re: investigation 

I've sent it out for review. Let's talk in a week or so. Hope you are ready for Monday. 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Jan 21, 2011 , at 8:03AM, "Nancy Sechrest" <nsechrest@msn.com> wrote: 

> Hi John - just following up on our conversation regarding an investigation into Salt Lake County's RFP 
process on their auto emissions program. Has the request been assigned? - Nancy 

AGGR000504 
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POSTED // AUGUST 7,2013 -

Mimi’s Cafe in Sandy isn’t exactly a biker bar, but in April 2012, the family-friendly diner 
did play host to a crowd that might’ve been a little rougher around the edges than usual. 
While not decked out in leathers or sporting face tattoos, the crew that showed up that 
morning for breakfast was involved in an industry that’s been the subject of increasing state 
and federal scrutiny. 

These were men of the Online Business Opportunity (OBO) industry, a business community 
of telemarketers who pitch consumers across the country on what critics call too-good-to-be
-true programs. These programs promise to teach people how to set up their own websites 
or build their own businesses, but often leave customers with nothing to show but maxed-
out credit cards.

At this particular confab, OBO leaders met over omelets and coffee to get to know the man 
who some of them hoped would be the new leader of their pack: John Swallow, then a 
candidate for Utah attorney general. 

The Mimi’s breakfast was one of two Swallow fundraisers hosted and emceed by Robert 
Montgomery, a call-center owner with a checkered criminal past who got his start in the 
OBO industry as a salesman for IWorks, a St. George-based company whose founder, 
Jeremy Johnson, is currently under indictment for allegedly having defrauded thousands of 
Americans out of $275 million. 

City Weekly has been reporting on companies like IWorks and their connections with the 
Utah Attorney General’s Office since 2008. Members of the industry have donated heavily 
to Shurtleff’s and Swallow’s campaigns for various offices. The Attorney General’s Office is 
tasked with prosecuting those same companies for consumer fraud if complaints are 
brought forward by the Utah Division of Consumer Protection. But the media and the 
public are left in the dark about a potential conflict of interest if a donation is never 
reported in the first place. 

Companies that were invited to attend the fundraisers donated at least $27,750 to Swallow’s 
campaign coffers, as noted on Swallow’s campaign-disclosure documents. Montgomery says 
he paid for the costs of the fundraisers, including meals and raffle prizes. According to a 
former employee of Montgomery’s business, Emmediate Credit Solutions, Montgomery 
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spent roughly $2,000 on the fundraisers. But neither Montgomery nor Emmediate Credit 
Solutions (ECS) was reported on Swallow’s official campaign records.

The purpose of campaign-finance disclosures is to give the public the chance to see how 
much a special interest gives a politician and decide for themselves whether the donation 
represents a show of support or a down payment on future back-scratching. The public 
can’t make those determinations for themselves when donations aren’t reported. 

Swallow’s campaign manager, Jason Powers, wrote via e-mail to City Weekly that “Attorney 
General John Swallow and his campaign are unaware of any political contribution, 
monetary or in-kind, received from Mr. Montgomery.”

The mystery donation raises questions about Swallow’s conduct while running for office. 
Swallow is already facing investigations from almost every level of government. Federal 
officials are investigating IWorks founder Jeremy Johnson’s claim that Swallow helped 
facilitate a bribe of Sen. Harry Reid, D-Nev., to derail a Federal Trade Commission 
investigation into Johnson’s company. Swallow is being probed by state investigators for 
the Johnson connection, as well as for receiving gifts from convicted white-collar criminal 
Marc Jenson. The Legislature has officially deputized a panel to investigate whether 
Swallow is fit to be a public servant. He’s also being scrutinized by an outside law firm, 
contracted by the Lieutenant Governor’s Office, to look into a complaint filed by progressive 
group Alliance for a Better Utah that says documents were inappropriately changed on 
Swallow’s official conflict-of-interest records. 

According to former employees, Montgomery and Swallow often met behind closed doors. 
During an ECS company meeting, Montgomery announced that Swallow would be able to 
keep federal regulators off his back. 

Montgomery says that there was nothing nefarious in his relationship with Swallow. 
Montgomery says that Swallow asked him to introduce him to his associates in the industry, 
and his perhaps naïve vision was simply to support the right candidate for office.

“I just hoped too high is all,” Montgomery says. “I wanted to build relationships in 
government to change the world and change the way our country and state is run ... all of 
it.”

Desperate Circumstances
According to Montgomery’s LinkedIn profile, he got his start in the OBO world at IWorks in 
St. George, working for Jeremy Johnson. Johnson was indicted in 2011 for allegedly having 
defrauded hundreds of thousands of Americans out of $275 million through IWorks by 
tacking hidden charges onto consumers’ credit cards after they purchased a program from 
the company on how to apply for government grants. 

The OBO industry markets itself as a kind of do-it-yourself resource—helping people who 
are in dire straits to help themselves by making money on the side, perhaps selling goods on 
eBay or launching their own Internet business. The bread and butter of the industry, critics 
say, are desperate people.

Gina DeMaria and her fiance, Carley Smith, were in desperate circumstances in 2012 after 
having their credit pummeled as Smith battled in court with his former employer over a 
disability lawsuit.

Smith had worked cleaning up electric trains in Sacramento, Calif. He’d replace ruined 
seats and move heavy “vandal windows”—window shields that could be easily replaced if 
marred by graffiti—off the trains nearly every day. One day, while removing an engineer’s 
seat from a train, he suffered a debilitating back injury. Smith couldn’t afford to stop 
working, though, so for the next three years, he fought through the pain, using his upper 
body instead of his injured back.

“After three years of doing that, my arms just went numb,” Smith says. “It got so bad, I 
couldn’t even hold my arms on the steering wheel of my car.”

A co-worker encouraged Smith to take his employer to court, which he did. After five years 
of expensive litigation, Smith got 100 percent disability and a sizable settlement from his 
former employer. But being unable to work during that time destroyed his credit and 
DeMaria’s.

In summer 2012, several months after Smith won his settlement, the couple decided to buy 
a house but realized they needed to do something about their credit. They clicked on 
FHAHomeMortgages.com, which they thought was an official government website, and 
filled out a survey about their credit. They wouldn’t find out until later that the site was a 
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private website operated by something known in the OBO industry as a lead provider. Lead 
providers collect personal information to sell to companies like Robert Montgomery’s 
Emmediate Credit Solutions, based in Murray.

DeMaria and Smith say that representatives from Emmediate Credit Solutions were soon 
calling and informing the couple that they would need to have their credit repaired before 
they could qualify for a federal home loan. DeMaria says they thought that they were 
speaking with a representative of the government at the time. They signed up for ECS’s 
credit-repair program and, after paying roughly $100 in upfront fees, started having $59 
deducted every month from their bank cards. 

The company kept charging the couple for months while, they say, they saw no 
improvement in their credit score. When they complained to ECS, they say, the fees got 
knocked down to $39 and then $29 a month. ECS ultimately took $748 total from the 
couple before the couple terminated their relationship with ECS. 

No one from ECS, the couple says, could show them that any work had been done to repair 
their credit. 

“They say they’ll do anything to fix our credit,” DeMaria says. “But they just took our 
money.”

Montgomery didn’t recall the specifics of that case but says the number of complaints has 
gone down recently since the company created an online system for following the progress 
staff makes on clients’ cases. 

“Usually, if our clients are unhappy, we will refund them their money,” Montgomery says. 
“We have a pretty liberal refund policy.”

The couple did eventually get a full refund from ECS, but they say it didn’t happen until 
after they told the company that a City Weekly reporter was asking about their experience.

A Business in the Shadows
According to former employees of ECS, the company had a history of doing well at signing 
clients up and billing them, but would regularly neglect to do any work on their behalf.

One former ECS employee, Rena Andrus, says the ECS business model was to sign clients 
up and then mail dispute letters to their creditors to challenge negative credit reports. But 
she says that through at least the first half of 2012, boxes of dispute letters would pile up 
and sit unmailed until Rob Montgomery would instruct staff to toss them in the garbage. 
According to Andrus and other former employees, the company kept billing clients even 
though they weren’t doing work for them. 

Montgomery says this never happened.

Employee X, who worked with Montgomery at Emmediate Credit Solutions and has asked 
to not be named for fear of reprisal from Montgomery, says it was practices like the 
unworked files that motivated Montgomery to become friendly with Swallow, who was then 
running for attorney general. 

“Rob [Montgomery] was worried every day about the FTC coming and knocking on his 
door,” Employee X says.

Andrus joined with Montgomery’s Emmediate Credit Solutions in 2011 after leaving her job 
in medical sales. She started on the sales side of ECS, calling people up to sell them on the 
company’s credit-repair services. She did well enough as a saleswoman that in early 2012, 
she was promoted to the business side of the company. 
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The company had an interesting division, she says. Salespeople on one side of the business 
sold the product without knowing how the other side of the business was actually helping—
or not helping—clients. 

When Andrus moved over to become an office manager and human-resources manager, she 
says, she was shocked to discover that the company was not following through on promises 
to send dispute letters to clients’ creditors. She says boxes full of clients’ information piled 
up, apparently left unmailed because, she says, the company would not invest in stamps 
needed to mail the filings. When the boxes stacked up too high, she says, the clients’
information was thrown in the dumpster, and they would start “fresh.” The process was 
repeated almost every month. 

Andrus soon realized she had been selling clients on empty promises.

“Nothing was getting done. No credit repair was being done for them,” Andrus says. “Half 
the stuff I told them was lies.”

Andrus estimates that less than a third of the clients actually had any work being done for 
them. 

“None of that stuff has gone on,” Montgomery says, dismissing Andrus’ claims as those of a 
disgruntled employee. “I gave her a human-resources/management position and she wasn’t 
qualified to hold it, nor did she do a very good job, and so I terminated her for that.”

Andrus, however, says she quit the company of her own choosing in June 2012 after being 
fed up with the company’s lack of follow-through on clients’ files.

In early 2012, Andrus says, she began to see a new face around the office: then-Chief 
Deputy Attorney General John Swallow. She says that on numerous occasions, Swallow 
appeared at the office and held closed-door meetings with Montgomery.

In one weekly meeting with executives of the company, Montgomery told her and others 
that having the future attorney general as an ally would mean that Swallow “would help to 
get the FTC to back off of companies that are ‘aggressive’ ” like ECS, Andrus says. “That was 
[Montgomery’s] wording.”

She says that Montgomery proudly announced that he and Swallow “were working on 
things together so that they could keep the laws loose in Utah when it came to call centers 
and the kind of business Rob [Montgomery] runs,” Andrus says.

Montgomery denies the claim. “I didn’t meet with him a lot,” he says. “His campaign 
manager just asked me, since I was a supporter, if I would invite my friends to support him 
and help fundraise for him.”

He says his interest in Swallow was about supporting a pro-business candidate. 

“There was nothing in it for my business; my hope was just that he would be a good person 
in office—to make things the way that they should be rather than just more and more 
regulations on different companies out there,” Montgomery says. 

Telemarketing licenses are one kind of regulation that helps the state keep track of 
companies that solicit by phone. According to Utah’s laws on telephone solicitation, 
Montgomery’s business shouldn’t have been dialing the leads it got from 
FHAHomeMortgages.com without a telemarketing license—something that, according to 
the Utah Division of Consumer Protection, the company never applied for. 

Montgomery says that while his company does do telephone solicitations, they’re not 
required to have a telemarketing permit because he’s licensed as a credit-repair company. 

According to Consumer Protection, ECS is licensed and bonded as a credit-services 
organization, but does not have a telemarketing bond and license. Consumer Protection 
says the company should have a telemarketing license, and plans to investigate it further.

“A Ticking Time Bomb”
Ryan Jensen has been in the OBO industry since 2008. One of the first floors he worked for 
was Murray-based Vanuity where, Jensen says, he first met Rob Montgomery.

Montgomery, Jensen says, was fresh out of prison, but within a few weeks, he was running 
his own sales floor. 

Jensen says he was blown away by Montgomery’s merciless sales style.
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“My experience with Rob is that he is a pompous, arrogant dude,” Jensen says. “He would 
get clients on the phone and beat the tar out of ’em. Whether they were broke or not, he 
would force a damn credit card out of them.”

Employee X recalls that Montgomery was a good-natured jokester, but with a volcanic rage 
bubbling under his wisecracking surface. X says that when another ECS employee called to 
take time off work, Montgomery pulled the phone cord out of the wall and swept his own 
computer off his desk.

“He was like a ticking time bomb,” says Andrus, who says she saw him scream profanities at 
employees and denigrate female employees, calling them “hos” and “bitches.”

While Montgomery denies Andrus’ claims, he nevertheless does have a history of violence, 
though he’s keen to underscore that he’s since changed his life.

In 2003, Montgomery was indicted for felony possession of a firearm after his ex-wife killed 
herself with a firearm of his, which he wasn’t supposed to own because of previous felony 
convictions. He served four years in federal prison.

According to court documents, her suicide ended an abusive relationship with Montgomery. 
U.S. District Judge Ted Stewart noted in his 2004 decision to approve harsher sentencing 
for Montgomery that the “defendant engaged in a pattern of escalating violence against his 
wife, culminating in an incident just hours before her death.”

A July 2004 Salt Lake Tribune article on the proceedings quoted prosecutors saying that 
Montgomery had choked his wife into unconsciousness shortly before she took her life. 

In Stewart’s decision, he also noted that Montgomery’s ex-wife had tried to kill herself three 
weeks prior to her death and that when she was released from the hospital, Montgomery 
refused to let her take her medication, deriding the treatment as “crazy pills.”

The judge’s decision also referenced Montgomery’s past, with Stewart writing that 
Montgomery’s “prior criminal history includes two felonies and numerous misdemeanors 
including assault against a police officer and carrying a concealed dangerous weapon. 
Defendant has a demonstrated history of violence and firearms violations combined with 
drug use.”

Speaking to his criminal record, Montgomery says it doesn’t have much bearing on his 
current line of work.

“I’ve never committed fraud or anything like that,” Montgomery says. “I changed my life 
and worked hard to do that, and I haven’t had any issues since. I’ve always done legit 
business, always have, always will. So far, [my criminal record] hasn’t affected me 
negatively ... it probably will if you go and publish all this crap, though.”

Friends of John Swallow
In April 2012, Montgomery began rallying his comrades in the dialing OBO industry to get 
behind Swallow for attorney general. He sent select industry players an e-mail invite to the 
fundraiser at Mimi’s Cafe, with Swallow’s picture and campaign logo and the message 
“Robert Montgomery and Attorney General Mark Shurtleff invite you to attend breakfast 
with Chief Deputy Attorney General John Swallow, Candidate for Utah Attorney General.”

The e-mail noted that donations were welcome and listed Swallow’s consultant Renae 
Cowley as a contact. The invitation closes by saying “Paid For by Friends of John Swallow.”

No such group is listed on Swallow’s campaign-disclosure forms as having donated to his 
campaign, nor is any such political-action committee or corporation registered with the 
elections office. 

According to the Elections Office, Swallow’s campaign had for a time referred to itself as 
Friends of John Swallow. Swallow’s campaign-disclosure form does list spending $104 at 
Mimi’s Cafe in April, but it does not identify the expense as part of a fundraiser. Swallow’s 
campaign manager Jason Powers says that the campaign is unaware of any fundraising 
done by Montgomery.

But Montgomery says he paid for the costs of the breakfast fundraiser, as well as an earlier 
fundraiser in St. George. Rena Andrus, who helped Montgomery prepare the fundraiser, 
says that gifts, including at least two iPads, movie tickets, VIP Jazz tickets and a vacation 
getaway prize, were purchased to be raffled off to those who donated at the fundraiser.

Employee X estimates that for at least the breakfast meeting in Salt Lake City, the meals 
cost $30 to $40 per guest and there were more than a dozen people in attendance.

3742



Jensen, who attended the event at Mimi’s, says Montgomery emceed the event, introducing 
both Shurtleff and Swallow.

“Rob got up and he was like, ‘Hey, we want you to all meet the attorney general and the 
future attorney general. This isn’t a get-out-of-jail-free card, but we want them to know who 
you are and understand this industry.’ ”

Jensen says there was no mistaking the fact that the event was a fundraiser and says that 
Montgomery told those in attendance that they were seeking to raise $100,000 for 
Swallow’s campaign. 

Andrus, who did not attend the meeting, says she heard Montgomery say at the office that 
he had committed to Swallow that he would raise $100,000 for him.

It was this breakfast fundraiser that Jensen’s business partner Aaron Christner, a call-
center owner, referenced in a 2012 phone call with Swallow, first reported by City Weekly
in May 2012. During the call, which Christner recorded, Swallow said that he planned to 
have the Attorney General’s Office take over investigations from the Utah Division of 
Consumer Protection so that he could oversee not only prosecutions of fraud complaints, 
but the investigations as well. 

Christner and Jensen feel that regulation of the industry is out of whack and that too many 
companies buy protection by allying themselves with the Attorney General’s Office. 

The Right Man in Office
While state and federal officials continue to investigate whether Swallow’s actions crossed 
the line between unethical and illegal and the Legislature decides whether his conduct is 
befitting that of a public servant, the state is also looking into allegations of irregularities 
with Swallow’s campaign-disclosure paperwork.

One complaint says that Swallow changed his conflict-of-interest paperwork after the legal 
deadline to conceal his interest in a company tied to the alleged bribery involving Jeremy 
Johnson and Sen. Harry Reid. 

The paperwork irregularity in the case of Montgomery and his missing donation is just as 
troubling for advocates like David Irvine, an attorney associated with Utahns for Ethical 
Government and Alliance for a Better Utah.

Irvine says this kind of “off-the-books money” damages the integrity of the campaign-
reporting system.

“Campaign-reporting laws are intended to make political money transparent,” Irvine says. 
“It’s not just that we want people to know where money comes from and who is providing 
it; we also want to know if the fact of providing that kind of money is purely to help elect a 
candidate or if there is some other agenda at work.”

As for Montgomery, his only regret is that his adventure in politics ended on a sour note 
after watching scandal after scandal unfold involving Swallow and allegations of corruption.

“My main goal was just to put the right person in office to make some major changes in 
government,” Montgomery says of Swallow. “But you see how that’s turned out.”

Continue reading: Page 1 | Page 2 | Read All 
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